SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
ANCHORAGE LEQ SLATI VE | NFORMATI ON OFFI CE
Decenber 10, 2013
3:06 p.m

Note: The follow ng neeting convened in the Anchorage
Legislative Information Ofice and was tel econferenced and
recorded in Juneau.

3:06: 32 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 3:06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Donny O son
Senat or Lyman Hof f man

ALSO PRESENT

John Hennessey, Senior Principal, Hay G oup; Representative
Lindsay Holnmes; Mlinda Riley, Senior Consultant, Hay
G oup; Justin Frerich, Associate Consultant, Hay G oup.

SUMVARY

Presentation: State Managed G oup Health Insurance Program
for Alaska Public School Enployees Report prepared by the
Hay G oup

A"PRESENTATI ON:  STATE MANAGED GROUP HEALTH | NSURANCE PROGRAM
FOR ALASKA PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES REPORT PREPARED BY THE
HAY GROUP

3:10:11 PM




JOHN HENNESSEY, SENI OR PRI NCI PAL, HAY GROUP, discussed the
Power Point, "State of Alaska State Minaged Goup Health
| nsurance Program for Al aska Public School Enployees" (copy
on file).

M . Hennessey discussed slide 3, "Agenda."
Wiy was the study done?
How was t he study conducted?
What does the anal ysis show?

VWhat are the recommended acti ons?

Appendi x

M . Hennessey displayed slide 5, "Wy was the study done?"

The Alaska State Senate Finance Committee (the
“Conmittee”) engaged Hay Group to conduct a study of
the group health prograns currently nmanaged by the
State’s 53 school districts wth the follow ng
pur poses:

-Determine the current cost of providing public
school enployee health benefits coverage in each
school district and what Dbenefits each plan
provi des

-Understand the cost and utilization associated
with a health benefit plan adm nistered by a non-
profit entity (a trust)

-Estimate the cost and overall i npact of
consolidating public school enployees under a
st at e- managed group heal th insurance program

3:12: 47 PM

MELI NDA RILEY, SENI OR CONSULTANT, HAY GROUP, |ooked at
slide 7, "How was the Study Conducted?”

Wrking with the Commttee Co-Chair, Senator Meyer,
and his staff, Hay G oup took the foll ow ng steps:

- Pl anni ng and scopi ng neeting

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 12/ 10/ 13 3:06 P.M



-Mutual agreenent on the constituency to be
surveyed and data to be collected

-Design and distribution to all 53 school
districts of custom zed group health plan survey

-Optimze district participation through regular
fol | ow ups

-Anal ysi s of group health program data
- Anal ysi s of program structure and costs

- Devel opnent of state-nanaged health plan options
for consideration

-Presentation of this report
Ms. Riley | ooked at slide 8, "How was the study conducted?"

Al'l 53 Al aska school districts responded to the survey
In addition, Hay Goup conducted interviews wth
various stakeholders within the State regarding the
study. Stakehol der organi zations i ncl uded:

- NEA- Al aska Health Pl an Trust

- Departnment of Adm nistration

- Al aska Associ ati on of School Boards

- Al aska Associ ati on of School Adm nistrators

-Commercial health insurance conpanies: Aetna,
Premera Bl ue Cross Blue Shield, and G gna

JUSTI N FRERI CH, ASSOCI ATE CONSULTANT, HAY GROUP, | ooked at
page slide 10, "Wat does the anal ysis show?"

The State’s school districts spend roughly $264
mllion on group health care prograns annually
covering alnost 16,000 enployees. The table below
shows the costs by district size:

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 12/ 10/ 13 3:06 P.M



-The average cost as a percentage of funding is
15.6 percent; however, the range is 14.2 percent
to 21.3 percent

3:18: 13 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if the funding was used for
enpl oyees only, not including dependents. M. Frerich
replied that the presentation did not include dependents.

M. Frerich stated that health clains were random events
both in frequency and severity. He renmarked that smaller
school districts tended to experience higher volatility
year to year in health clains, because there were a snaller
nunber of peopl e.

M. Frerich |looked at slide 12, "Wat does the analysis
show?"

The specific features of health plans vary throughout
the State.

Plans at P25 or 25th percentile reflect |ess valuable
pl ans

Plans at P75 or 75th percentile reflect nore val uable
pl ans

There is a 12 percent difference in reinbursenent
| evel s between the P25 and P75 plan, which indicates
there is sone alignnent anong school district plan
of ferings

Co-Chair Kelly asked for further explanation of a bullet on
slide 12 regarding the 12 percent difference. M. Frerich
replied that the 12 percent referred to the reinbursenent
percent of allowed charges. He remarked that it was a
difficult concept, but through deductibles and copays the
menber would be required to pay 14 percent of total health
cl ai m charges at the nedi an.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if the 12 percent indicated an
al i gnnent anong school district plan options. M. Frerich
responded that deductibles ranged considerably from high to
| ow and out-of - pocket maxi muns ranged as well. He remarked
that prescription copays and specialist visits did not
i ndi cate nuch differenti al

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 12/ 10/ 13 3:06 P.M



3:22:25 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough queried the conparison of the
analysis with other states. M. Hennessey responded that
the 12 percent differential was conparable to other states.

M. Frerich | ooked at slide 13, "Prem um Cost Sharing."

School district enployees pay roughly 11 percent of
total health care costs for enployees and dependents
i n aggregat e.

21 districts pay for the entire cost of health care

32 districts enmploy cost sharing wth an average
enpl oyee share is 13 percent

Mar ket norms indicate prem um cost sharing closer to
20 percent

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered if the district versus
enroll ment provided a different perspective. She surm sed
that there was no differential between enployees and
dependents. She wondered if there was a difference in the
percentage when exam ning actual enployee nunbers versus
districts. M. Hennessey responded that nost of the figures
were weighted averages, recognizing that the [larger
districts would have a disproportionate inpact on any of
t he anal ysis and concl usi ons.

3:27:12 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough felt that the percentages could be
skewed, because some districts had cost-share and sone did
not. She felt that she was drawing a conclusion that nost
people were not, by a district percentage, paying anything
extra in the form of cost sharing. Ms. Riley replied that
that there was an analysis of the cost sharing of the
districts, and understanding that the 21 districts
represent a snmaller percentage of the cost. She believed
that 12 percent of costs fell on the 21 districts. She
stressed that there were aggregates, and remarked that
there could be different cost sharing within one district.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 12/ 10/ 13 3:06 P.M



Vice-Chair Fairclough stressed that sonetines percentages
| ooked extreme, and had sonme or Jlarge inpacts on the
finances.

M. Hennessey |ooked at slide 14, "Plan Funding and
Over head Costs."

Fully insured health plan - school district pays a
fixed prem um per enployee, and the insurance conpany
bears all of the risk (and reward)

Built into the premuns are risk charges,
reserves, prem um taxes, profit, and often
comm Sssi ons

Self-insured health plan — the school district bears
the risk of costs being above those expected.
Contributions are based on a best guess of plan costs
(clainms and adm nistrative costs),

Partially insured health plan - districts that are
self-insured mtigate higher-than-anticipated clains
through the purchase of stop-loss insurance, which
will reinburse the plan sponsor if and when clains
exceed a certain |evel.

As a general nmatter, l|arge enployers (e.g., groups
greater than 1,000) are nore likely to self-insure
than small groups, since anticipated clains becone

nore predictable as group size increases.

3:31:58 PM

M. Frerich |ooked at slide 15, "Distribution of Plan
Fundi ng and Per Enpl oyee Total Costs."

-As expected, smaller districts are nore likely to be
fully insured, while larger districts tend to be
partially or self-insured

- NEA- Al aska Health Plan is largest single provider of
school district health coverage

-Fully-insured groups are paying nore per enployee
after adjusting for plan design

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 12/ 10/ 13 3:06 P.M



-School district health care costs are higher relative
to national market norns

M. Frerich enphasized what the table did not acknow edge
or take into account nunber of dependents, health status,
enpl oyee age, geography, and how an entity is contracted.

Representative Holnmes noted that there were 55 districts,
and the last two |lines have one nore district than any of
the other charts. She asked for an explanation regarding
t hat observation. M. Frerich responded that there were a
coupl e of wunique arrangenents in Juneau and Anchorage, who
were each enrolled in NEA Al aska.

3:36:21 PM

M. Frerich looked at slide 16, "Overhead by District
Si ze. "

Districts are currently paying $6.2 M in overhead and
broker revenue, or 2.4 percent of health care costs

M. Hennessey remarked that the expenses were required by
i nsurance underwriters to cover t he addi ti onal
adm nistrative services, and the risk to the charge of the
prem um

Senator Bi shop wondered how the 2.4 percent overhead cost
conpared to other states. M. Hennessey responded that the
average included what occurred in Al aska and other states.
He furthered that consultant revenue and broker revenue
nmust be separated. Consultants charged on a per fee basis;
and broker revenue was often defined as revenue that was
received in the form of commssions. Snaller groups
generally had a hi gher percentage basis, because a |evel of
paynent nust be renunerated back to the broker. Larger
groups would have a smaller percentage, so the 2.4
per cent age overhead was determ ned based on small and | arge
gr oups.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if the phrase "statistically
predi ctable" referred to the nunber of beneficiaries inside
a particular plan. She queried the nunber that would create
statistically predictable pool. M. Hennessey responded
that the concept of statistically significant pooling was
the point in tinme that a group was |arge enough to be 100
per cent credible.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 12/ 10/ 13 3:06 P.M



3:42: 37 PM

Vi ce- Chair Fairclough understood that the nexus between 500
lives and catastrophic coverage to mtigate risk. She
queried the nunber of lives that would be covered under the
catastrophic coverage. M. Hennessey stated that when 8, 000
lives are covered, it becomes fully credible.

MVs. Ri | ey | ooked at slide 17, "Heal th Pr ogram
St akehol ders. "

Al aska school districts

- NEA- Al aska Heal th Pl an

- Aet na

-Departnent of Adm nistration

-Prenera

-Third Party Adm nistrators (Rehn and Associ at es,
Moda, WPAS and Integrity Adm nistrators)

-Cigna

- Al aska Public Enpl oyees Associ ation

-Local 71, Laborers International Union of North
Ameri ca (LI UNA)

- Al aska Teansters

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered if the retirenent health
pl ans were public or private records. M. Hennessey asked
if she were asking about annuity.

Vi ce-Chair Fai r cl ough specifically wonder ed if t he
st akehol ders had public health care clainms, in order to
conpare to the school districts' challenges. M. Hennessey
replied that sone had sonme nmay be open to public record
requests, but he could not respond with certainty which
or gani zati ons provide access to that information.

3:47:53 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough asked about claim costs, and wondered
if it was proprietary. M. Hennessey responded that
authorization was required in order to receive the
i nformati on.

Ms. Riley |ooked at slide 19, "What are the reconmended
actions?"

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 12/ 10/ 13 3:06 P.M



The potential savings of noving to a State managed
group health program varies depending on the enployee

I npact

-The lower left portion of the graph represents
savi ngs achi eved purely t hr ough m ni m zi ng
over head, opti m zi ng heal th care program
managenent, and |everaging resources to obtain a
better deal in contracting with vendors

-The upper right portion of the graph represents,
in sone form cost shifting from school districts
to enpl oyees and their dependents through reduced
choice of plan options, less rich plan designs
and i ncreased prem um cost sharing

M. Riley |ooked at slide 20, "Hay Goup's 4 Operons for a
consol i dat ed st ate-managed health plan."

Option 1: Optim ze program performance

-Consol i date all school districts into one
conmbi ned pool with centrally managed procurenent,
enterprise health care program nanagenent, and
optim zed vendor/provider contracting by a state-
managed entity (or “Departmnent”).

-Includes gradual reduction and narrowi ng of the
health plan design options available to school
districts.

-This Departnment handles rate setting for all
pl an designs offered by school districts. Schoo

districts can then independently determ ne how
much to charge their enpl oyees and dependents.

Option 2: UWilize the Departnment of Administration’s
Al askaCar e

-Consolidate as in option 1, but |everage the
Al askaCare program nmanaged by the Departnent of
Adm ni stration and adopt t he pl an opti ons

currently avai |l abl e t hr ough Al askaCar e. To
mtigate risk of increased plan design costs, the
State could |imt the plan choice to just the

Econony and/or Standard pl ans.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 12/ 10/ 13 3:06 P.M



3:54: 08 PM

Co-Chair Meyer surmsed that if all the public school
districts were conbined wth Al askaCare, the health
benefits would be nore generous to the public school
enpl oyees. Ms. Riley replied that the current econony plan
of Al askaCare was slightly below the nedian of school
district plans by a couple of percentage points.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if the school district plan was
close to the Al askaCare standard plan. Ms. Riley replied
that the Al askaCare standard plan was slightly above the
nmedi an.

Co- Chair Meyer wondered if Al askaCare woul d save the school
districts nmoney. Ms. Riley replied that enployee behavior
woul d factor into the predictions.

Senator Dunl eavy asked if the analysis provided an option
to keep the status quo. M. Hennessey responded in the
affirmative.

Vice-Chair Fairclough remarked that there would be benefit
to the lives that are covered in association with some
benefits in the costs in delivering the benefits. Ms. R ley
agreed and furthered that there were various benefits to
t he enpl oyees, districts, and the state.

Senat or Dunleavy stressed that both the state and the
enpl oyees could benefit, depending on what decision is
made. M. Hennessey replied in the affirmative

M. Riley looked at slide 21, "Hay Goup's 4 Operons for a
consol i dat ed state-managed health plan.”

Option 3: Centrally manage school district program
wi th standard health plan options and cost sharing

-Build wupon option 2 but enployees would be
offered a different nmenu of health plan options
than the current Al askaCare |ineup. This new nenu
would nore closely align with the current school
district offerings.

-Create a uniform premum cost sharing strategy
for school districts to follow

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 12/ 10/ 13 3:06 P.M



Option 4: Centrally manage school district program
wi th standard health plan options only

-Variation of option 3 that provides continued
di scretion to school districts to set their own
prem um cost sharing |levels based on their
i ndi vi dual requirenents.

3:58:48 PM

Vi ce- Chair Fairclough wondered if there was a record in the
analysis of individuals who were "double covered", and
asked if those individuals were governnent-to-governnent
covered, or governnment-to-outside entity covered. M

Frerich replied that the analysis did not include thaf
survey.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough asked would there be cost savings if
there were a group of individuals who were double covered.
M. Hennessey responded that there was a |imting of the
cost mtigation strategies, if the coverage was given to
spouses and dependents.

M. Frerich |ooked at slide 23, "Potential savings is a
significant factor in any State Managed group health
program"” He remarked that the group health plan indicated
significant savings, because the 53 school districts would
be noved to a | everaged procured contract. It would benefit
from significant buying power and increased contracting
wi th a Pharnmacy Benefits Manager (PBM.

4:04:48 PM

Ms. Riley stressed that the savings were the sane with the
provi der network and PBM

M. Frerich continued to discuss slide 23. He stated that
fully insured overhead related to reserves, risk pools,
insurance profit, and state premum taxes. He explained
that $1.2 mllion could be elimnated by noving to a
centrally rmanaged state entity procuring health care
services for public school district enployees. He stated
that the figure would be $1.1 mllion for stop |oss fees,
which could be elimnated by noving to the pool. He
remarked that sonme stop loss insurance may need to be
pur chased depending on the risk appetite by the managing
entity. He explained that broker revenue was currently $4

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 12/ 10/ 13 3: 06 P. M



million, and it would potentially be renoved by noving to a
state managed plan. The nunbers were the sane for al
options, and there were no enpl oyee di sruptions.

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered how nmany people in the
Public Enpl oyees' Retirenent System (PERS) chose the
econony plan versus the standard plan. She asked if the
school district enployees would pick the econony plan or
the standard plan. M. Hennessey replied that the concept
was to inpact the mgration by how the contribution was
set. He stated that enployees initially exam ned how their
paycheck was inpacted. He renmarked that the art was based
on contribution scenarios, because there was not a desire
to inplenent a program that resulted in $25.8 mllion in
expense.

4:10: 14 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough surmsed that there would not be a
risk variable swing by $40 million. M. Hennessey responded
that in option 2, a cost sharing line that was currently
zero woul d change to sonet hing other than zero.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if the change woul d be based
on cost sharing for dependent coverage. M. Hennessey
replied that chargi ng people nore would occur under the new
environnment for the standard and prem um pl an.

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered if the public school
districts would be paying the sane way that the PERS
enpl oyees were. M. Hennessey replied in the affirmative.

M. Frerich continued to discuss slide 23, third colum
Option 3. He remarked that there was a plan design
di sruption with a 75th percentile plan, a nedian plan, and
a high deductible health plan. He stated that the option
was typical in the narketplace, so the enployees woul d have
the option of choosing from the three different plans.
Additionally, it would be cost sharing that was set by the
st at e.

M. Frerich discussed option 4 on slide 23. He explained
that it was the sane scenario as option 3, but the state
woul d not mandate cost sharing.

M. Hennessey highlighted slide 24, "What are the
recommended actions?”

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 12/ 10/ 13 3: 06 P. M



Hay Goup recommends Option 3 to optimze plan
per f ormance, achieve significant savings and provide a
better managed health program to school district
enpl oyees.

-Through a <centrally managed school district
program with standard health plan options and
cost sharing, the State can provide a nenu of
health plan options that are custom zed to best
suit the needs of school districts.

-In addition, a wuniform premum cost sharing
strategy would be inplenented, ensuring interna
equity and ease of adm ni stration and
communi cati on

-The estimated financial inpact of 7.7 percent to
11.4 percent of current health care costs is
significant.

If it is desirable for school districts to retain sone
discretion in setting enployee cost sharing |evel,
Option 4 is a suitable alternative.

4:15:46 PM

Co-Chair Meyer remarked that the discussion of savings
referred to savings for the school districts. M. Hennessey
replied in the affirmative, and stressed that the focus was
on reducing nedical and prescription drug health care
cost s.

Co-Chair Meyer remarked that the state would need to hire
nore people to adm nister the program so there would be an
additional cost to the state. He queried the cost estimte
for those additional personnel. M. Hennessey responded
that there were currently 53 independently managed plans
that served 53 independent districts. He stated that there
was a conbination of staffing internally, or adding |ess
staff but |ooking for external partners. He agreed that
there would need to be support to sustain the program and
maintain its viability. He remarked that he had focused on
br okerage and consulting revenue, because that would be an
expense reduction. He furthered that sonme percentage of
that would be added to the plan to cover the adm nistrative
costs. He assunmed the cost would be around $2 million.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 12/ 10/ 13 3: 06 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer recalled that the report stated that each
school district had approxinmately |less than one person
dedicated to admnistering their health care plan. M.
Hennessey responded that he had not analyzed the workl oad
of the individuals that nanage the health plans. He
remarked that the proposal would nmake the admnistration
| ess conpl ex, because decisions wuld be nmde in
uniformty.

4:19:13 PM

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if option 2 would provide nore cost
saving across the board, by negotiating |ower rates based
on a higher nunber of enrollees. M. Hennessey responded
that consolidation would result in greater purchasing
power .

Co-Chair Meyer surmsed that option 1 had the |east i npact
to school districts and school enployees; however option 1
started the process of a state-nmanaged plan. Option 2 would
have a |arger inpact, because Al askaCare would be a richer
program resulting in nore costs. Option 3 was recomended,
and asked why option 3 was the best. Ms. Riley responded
that option 3 would nmaximze the savings through a
centrally managed program and would mnimze enployee
di sruption in plan design.

Co-Chair Meyer surmised that option 3 wuld not as
beneficial, if a school district chose not to participate.
Ms. Riley responded that the program worked best if it were
mandatory for everyone to participate.

4:23:28 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough remarked that there were four or five
school district superintendents who had asked for relief in
the cost of health care for their districts. She felt that
the anal ysis nust be carefully exam ned, and asked that the
unions also give their perspective. She wondered if there
was an expectation of health care prem um costs to decrease
in the future. M. Hennessey replied that there was no
reason to expect health care trends to be significantly
lower in the future.

4:27:56 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 12/ 10/ 13 3: 06 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Fairclough |ooked at slide 11, and remarked that
there were 47 school districts that had 500 enployees or
fewer. She referred back to a question about statistically
significant or predictability, and the response was that
500 lives mght carry catastrophic insurance to pool at
$5,000. She felt that those school districts nmay be
di sadvantaged at a higher rate than the districts that were
|arger than 500 enployees. M. Hennessey agreed, and
furthered that the sunmation applied across the country.

Senat or Bi shop wondered how the proposals would affect the
bargai ning unit costs. M. Hennessey responded that there
were organizations that would need to reevaluate their
roles, but was not qualified to address the question
further.

Senat or Bishop stressed that the work may adversely inpact
certain groups, and their rates that were a part of their
agr eenent s.

Co-Chair Meyer remarked that the bulk of the cost was not
t he burden of one particul ar group.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered what other states were doing
related to health care plans. M. Riley replied that
Washington had a different |andscape, and the savings
potential that was found was not as great as Al aska.

4:33:53 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if the Hay G oup expected to find
potential savings in the analysis. M. Hennessey replied
that he expected sone savings, but stressed that the
anal ysis reveal ed where the specific savings could be nade.

Co- Chair Meyer di scussed housekeepi ng.
#

ADJ OURNVENT
4:39:10 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:39 p.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 12/ 10/ 13 3: 06 P. M



